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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Shareholders
Gulf International Services Q.5.C,
Doha - Qatar

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Gulf International Services Q.5.C. (“the
Company"} and its subsidiaries (together “the Group™), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at December 31, 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
infarmation.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present Gairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as &t December 31, 2017, and its consalidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs),

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1SAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Audiior's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the other sthical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the Group’s consolidated financial statements in the state of Qatar, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities. We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sulficient and
gppropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matters

K&y audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current vear, These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a scparate opinion on these matters,

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the kev audit matters.

The Group has QR. 303.56 million of
goodwill at December 31, 2017 arising from
past acquisition (Note 5), There is a risk
regarding the potential impairment of the
carrying value of the poodwill given the
judgments management are required to make
in respect of the assumptions used to
determine the recoverable amount. The key
judgements include identification of cash
penerating units, growth rales in future cash
flow forecasts both short term and longer
term, discount rates applied to these
forecasts and determining the impact of
reasonably peossible changes in  these
assumptions,

Our audit work assessed the adequacy of the design
and implementation of contrals over maonitoring the
carrying value of goodwill Independently we
identified and challenged management's assessment
of the cash generating units within the Group based
on a review of the cash flows internally reported by
management, and our understanding of the Group
structure;, We challenged the assumptions used hy
management In their impainment assessment by using
valuation specialists within the audit team 1o
benchmark the discount rate apainst independently
available data, together with peer group analysis, our
understanding of the assumptions underpinning the
Group's cash flow forecasts, and the historical
performance of the businesses, Having audited the
assumptions, we checked thal the impairment mode]
bad been prepared on the basis of management's
gssumptions and was arithmetically accurate. We
challenged the appropriateness of management's
sensitivities based on our work performed on the key
assumptions, and recalculated these sensitised
scenarios.

Further, we assessed whether the related disclosures
were in accordance with the requirements of
International Financial Reporting Standards.

Asar December 31, 2017, one of the Group's
subsidiary, Gulf Drilling [nternational
Limited €Q.5.C. (GDI), has drilling rigs
included in property, plant and equipment
ampunting to QR. 5,322 million which
account for 82% of the total assets of the
component.

During past few years, the oil prices
decreased significantly and some contracts
with customers were amended to decrease
the operating hours and day rates of some of
the Group's rigs.

As required by IAS 36 (Impairment of
Assets), management conducts impairment
tests to assess the recoverability of the
carrying value of the property, plant and

Our audit procedures included a review of
management’s impairment assessment of each rig
performed at year end. We engaged our Internal
specialists to assist with:

s Critically evaluating whether the discounted cash
fow model used by management to calculate the
value in use of the individual rigs complies with
the requirements of IAS 36 (Impairment of
Assers),

» Validating the assumptions used to calculate the
discount rates and recalculating these rates.

e Analyzing the future projected cash flows used in
the models to defermine whether they are
reasonable and supportable pgiven the current
macroeconomic climate and expectad  future




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Key audit matiers

How our audit addressed the key audit matters.

equipment whenever impairment indicators
exist,

The assessment is  performed  using
discounted cash flow models. A number of
key judgments and assumptions made in
determining the inputs into these models
inglude:
= HRevenue growth
Operating margins
The discount rates applied to the
projected future cash fows.
s Refer to (note 3).

performance of the individual rigs,

* Subjecting the key assumptions to sensitivity
analyses.

* Comparing the projected cash flows, including the
assumptions relating to revenue growth rates and
operaling margins, against historical performarice,
budgets and external data when available, two
assess the reasonablencss of management's
projections.

Further, we zssessed whether the related disclosures
were in accordance with the requirements of
International Financial Reporting Standards,

One of the Group’s subsidiaries, Al Koot
Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.
(Al Koot) has two insurance busincss
sepments, namely, medical and non-medical
insurance,

Al Koot maintgined three main types of
insurance contract liability to account for the
claims incurred during the normal course of
its insurance busiress, as follows:

|, Insurance cleims outstanding (QR 462.6
million) s of December 31, 2017 (Note
11.4)

For non-medical claims, the claim is
estimated based on interim loss
adjusters’ reports, and for claims for
which no loss recommendation is given
by loss adjusters, interim provision is set
up is accordance with the Group’s
policy. Far medical claims, the provision
is determined based on monthly
statement provided by the Group’s
medical insurance partner.

2. Incwrred But Not Reported (“IBNR™)
(QR 148.5 million) as of December 31,
2017 (Note 11.4):

IBMNR reserve for both medical and non-
medical business had been estimated
using ectuarial assumptions, and internal
assessinent on adequacy of reserves

We performed our audit procedures which were o
combination of internal control reliance strategy and
specific substantive procedures focusing on the
significant risk, Such procedures, include, but are not
limited 1o

s Asscssing the appropriateness and consistency of

reserving methodologies used in the computation
of reserves held by the Group, including
sensitivity of such reserves to changes in key
assumptions and judgements;

o Assessing the development of Oustanding Claims

and IBNR by performing a review of retrospective
histarical performance of the estimates and
judpements made by Al Koot; and

= Engaging an actuarial specialist to evaluate the
actuarial estimates performed by management's
expert for IBNR on medical and non-medical
underwriting reinsurance business.

Further, we assessed whether the related disclosures
were in accordance with the requirements of
International Financial Reporting Standards,




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Key nudit matters How our sudit addressed the key audit matters,
recommended by an  independent
actuary.

3. Unearmed Premium Reserve (“UPR"™)
({QR 126,58 million) as of December 31,
2017 (Mote 22):

For both medical and non-medical, UPR
iz determined based on /365 method ar
the duration of the policy, whichever is
longer.

The computation of claims outstanding,
IBMNR and UPR are subject to dssumptions
and key judgments which include a range of
historic trend analysis, empirical data and
standard  actuarial  claim  projection
techniques.

The Group has available-for-sale (AFS) | We reviewed the reasonableness of valuation of AFS
financial assets amounting to QR 387.37 | financial assets by test checking the following;
million as at December 31, 2017 (Note 9).

= The revaluation rates available from established
The valuation and impairment assessment of markel sources as at December 31, 2017; and
AFS financial assets involve the use of key
Judgements. o Muanapement assessment of significant or
prolonged decline in value of aviilable for sale
investments and other indicators of potential
impairment.

Further, we assessed whether the related disclosures
were in accordance with the requirements of
International Financial Reporting Standards.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’
Report, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditors” report and annual report, which is expected
to be made available to us after that date. The other information does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon,

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in deing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the conzolidated financizgl statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated,

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of
this auditor's report, we conclude that there is a material misstaternent of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nathing to report in this regard.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRS, the Company’s Article of associations and applicable provisions
of Qatar Commercial Companies' Law, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ahility to continue a5 & going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group
or Lo cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseging the Group®s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities For the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis not & guarantes
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISA's, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

#  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risk, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the intérnal control,

#  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the regsonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

#  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group®s ability to continue a3 a going concern.
If we conclude that 2 material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosure in the consolidated Anancial statements or, if such disclosure are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group 1o
cease o conlinue as a going concermn.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

¥ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

#  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements,
We are responsible for the direction, superyision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion,

We communicate with these charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements reparding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matiers that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated linancial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these marters in our auditor's report unless law and
regulations preclude public disclesure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that 2 matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Further, as required by the Qatar Commercial Companies’ Law, we report the following:

#  We are also in the opinion that proper books of account were mainiained by the Group, physical
inventory verification has been duly carried out.

We obtzined all the information and explanations which we considered necessary for our audit.

We further confirm that the financial information included in the Director's report addressed to
the General Assembly is in agreement with the books and records of the Group,

# To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information given to us, no
contraventions of the applicable provisions of Qatar Commercial Companics' Law and the
Company's Articles of Associations were committed during the year which would materially
affect the Group's consolidated financial position and-performance.

Doha - Qatar quluittt & Touoche
February 7,2018 Qatar Branch

~ . Walid Slim
Partner
License No. 319

QFMA Auditor License No. 120156



GULF INTERNATIONAL SERVICES Q.5.C.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Asat December 31, 2017

December 31, December 31,
MNotes 2017 2016
QR ‘000 QR 000

ASSETS
Mon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment f 7,219,761 7,338,859
Goodwill 5 303,559 303,559
Intangible assets 1 1,112 2,224
Held-to-maturity financial assets 8 3,583 85 468
Available-for-sale financial assets 9 387370 321,930
Taotal non-current assets 7,915,385 8.052,040
Current assets
Inventories 10 202,116 218,614
Due from related parties 28 (ii) 462,841 309,533
Accounts receivable, prepayments and other debit
balances 11 507,028 720377
Insurance contract receivables 188,360 266,599
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 12 201,029 214,149
Short-term investments 13 20,263 -
Cash and bank balances 14 931,454 1,335,724
Total current assets 2,513,091 3.065,396
Total assets 10,428,476 11,117,436
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 15 1,858,409 1,858,409
Legal reserve 16 359,410 352,294
CGeneral reserve 17 74,516 74,516
Foreign currency translation reserve 36 1,325
Fair value reserve 0 (3,692) 12,239
Retained earnings 1,389,884 1,495,985
Total equity 3,678,563 3,798,768
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Employees' end of service benefits 20 76,757 70,794
Provision for decommissioning costs 21 25,954 92,088
Loans and borrowings 19 4,247,662 4,629 862
Total non-current liabilities 4,350,373 4,792,744

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ST



GULF INTERNATIONAL SERVICES Q.5.C.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

As at December 31, 2017

December 31, December 31,
Notes 2017 2016
QR “000 QR 000

Current liabilities
Accounts payable, insurance pavables and
accruals 22 1,355,182 1,483,030
Provision for decommissioning costs 21 42,897 -
Dividends payable 18 95,346 100,210
Due to related parties 28 (i) 8312 2712
Loans and borrowings 19 897,803 939,972
Total current liabilities 1399540 2,525.924
Total liabilities 6,749,913 7.318.668
Total equity and liabilities 10,428.476 11,117,436

These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and signed

on its behall on February 7, 2018 by:

Ebrahim Ahmad Al-Mannai
Managing Director

Khalid Bin Khalifa Al-Thani
Chairmen

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as



GULF INTERNATIONAL SERVICES (Q.8.C.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREEHENSIVE

INCOME
As al December 31, 2017

Pecember 31, December 31,
MNotes 2017 2016
QR "000 QR 000
Revenue 23 2,485,897 2.988,798
Direct costs 24 {2,035,073) (2,458,960)
Gross profit 450,824 529,838
Finance income 25 27.514 28.260
Met gains/{losses) on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss 4,219 7.732
Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial
assets 9 - (2,701}
Other income (expenses), net 26 19,191 (122,280)
Share on loss of joint venture - (191}
Finance cost (172,389) {125,163)
Ceneral and administrative expenses 27 (244,379) _ {248,534)
Profit for the vear 84,980 66,961
Other comprehensive loss
Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:
Available-for-sale financial assets:
Net fair value loss during the year (15,931) (11,662)
Net amount of impairment transferred to
profit or loss - 2,701
(15,931) (8,961)
Net foreign exchange difference on translation
of foreign aperations (1,.28%) 454
Other comprehensive loss for the vear (17,2241 (8,507}
Total comprehensive income for the year 67,760 58.454
Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share (Qatari
Riyal) 29 0.46 0.36

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-
T



-

SINAWALYLS TYIDNYNIA ALVArIOSN0D 3SHHL A0 2avd TVHDALN NY TY SALON ONIANYdWOODY JHL

£95'8LY'E PRE'68E1 (769°¢) 9¢ 9IS'tL 01+'65¢ 60 858°1
(FZI'T) (rz1'D - = - - =
(I+8's81) (1+8°s81) - e - - -
= (o11°L) - - - 911'L -
09L°L9 086'F8 (1¢6's1) (68Z°1) - - -
BOL'B6L'E SR6'66P'1 GETTI (Mol | DIS'EL P6T'ISE 60F'858°T
89L'86L'C SB6'66F 1 65T TI STE'T 9IS HL P6T ISE 60+'858'1
(FLo'1) {bLo' 1) - - - - -
(1#8°581) (1¥8's81) - - == - =
- {ro¥'11) - - se Lot 11 -
For'8s 196'9 (196'8) pStr - - o
6T2°LI6E Or6' 1£9°] 00z'1Z L8 G915 L C6R0PE 60r'858°]
300 90 000, HO 000. 9O 000. O 000. 4O 000, ¥O 000, ¥O
[E L SAUILES DAIISOT aalasad AAIDEAT aalasal [endes
Paureiay SMTEA JIB ] uonesuen _Ea_c u@ Hﬂmu_._ u._ﬁ_ﬂw
Aduanma
udiaiog

LT0T ‘1€ 49qWada( 18 00E[RY

(zz

a10N) puny spods pue 21308 10§ UOISIAQL]
(81 2108]) paue[aap spuAPIALC]

(91 2108]) 2Ala52d (B3] UI JUSWLBACIL Jan]

Jead AU 107 2woour aalsuay2aduwion (20|

£10T 1 Arenuel 18 soue[eg

910T "1 € 12quuada(] 38 2duE[Rg

(T

MON) pung spods pue [B120S J0] UOISIAD
(81 M10N) parejap spuapial(]

(0] @10p]) araasal [BEa| Ul JUALUSAQLL Jap]

Ieas ay) o) awoom astsuayadwon Ejo |

910z | Alenuey 1 saue|eg

LT0T “1 £ Jaquasag] papua Jeadk Ju 10,

ALINOY NI SHONVHD 40 INIWALV.LS JLLVArTOSNOD

"0'S'0O SEDIAYIS TYNOLLYNYAINI 47119



GULF INTERNATIONAL SERVICES Q.5.C.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended December 31, 2017

Mote December 31, December 31,
3 2017 2016
QR *000 QR 000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year 84,980 66,961
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 6 498,197 576,883
{Gain)/loss on disposal/write off of property, plant
and equipment {2,567) 133,711
Finance cost 172,388 125,163
Finance income 25 (27,514) (28,260)
Provision for employees® end of service benefits 20 16,406 18,961
Provision for slow moving and obsolete items 10 7,705 14,254
Provision for doubtful debts, net 16,823 387
Provision for other debts, net 7,162 -
Net gain on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (4,219 (7.732)
Additional provision for decommissioning costs 2 18,743 6,628
Reversal of provision for decommissioning costs 21 (41,9800 -
Net gain on sale of available-for-sale financial assets 26 (3,702) (3,962)
Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets - 2,701
Amortization of intangible assets 7 1,112 1,112
Change in foreign currency translation reserve (1,289} 454
Amortization of premium of held-to-maturity
financial assets - 53
742,245 907,514

Working capital changes:
Inventories 8,793 (10.884)
Accounts receivable, due from related parties, insurance
contract receivables, prepayments and other debit
balances 114,695 470,682
Accounts payable, due (o related parties, insurance
payables and aceruals (124,372) (395.601)
Cash generated from operating activities 741,361 971,711
Employees’ end of service benefits paid 20 (10,443) (22,798)
Net cash generated from operating activities 730918 948913
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale financial
assets 187,414 73,276
Finanee income 27,514 28,260
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 6 (380,701) (693,253)
Acquisition of available-for-sale financial assets 9 (165,859) (B8.487)
Time deposits with original maturities in excess of three
months 200,293 (75,358)
Time deposits maturing beyond 180 days (20,263) -
Cash at banks — restricted for dividends 4,864 3.905
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 4,169 7.970
Net cash used in Investing activities (142,569) (743,729

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=5-



GULF INTERNATIONAL SERVICES Q.58.C.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended December 31, 2017

December 31, December 31,
Motes 207 2016
QR ‘000 QR “000

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from loans and borrowings 19 629,840 1,838.200
Repayment of loans and borrowings 19 (1,054,209) (1,425411}
Dividends paid 18 (190,705) (18%,746)
Finance costs paid (172,388) (125,163)
WNet cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (787.462) 97,880
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (199,113) 303,064
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 697,544 394,480
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 14 498.431 607 544

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i



GULF INTERNATIONAL SERVICES Q.5.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2017

L

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Gulf International Services Q.S.C. (the “Company”) is a Qatari Shareholding Company
mcorpoarated in the State of Qatar under commercial registration number 38200 on February 12,

2008,

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 comprise
the assets, liabilities, and results of operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group™),

The principal activity of the Company is to operate as a holding company. The registered office of
the Company is in Doha, State of Qatar,

The Company was incorporated by Qatar Petroleum (“QP”) as a sole shareholder with an initial
capital of QR. 5 million on February 12, 2008.

Until February 24, 2008, the equity interests in the portfolio companies Gulf Helicopters Q.5.C.
("GHC™), Gulf Drilling International Q.5.C. (“GDI”) and Al Koot Insurance and Reinsurance
Company 5.A.Q. (“Al Koot”) were held directly by QP and Japan Drilling Company (“JDC™) (In
case of GDI — 30.01% was owned by JDC) and the equity interests of QP were transferred to the
Company on February 24, 2008,

On May 26, 2008, QF listed 70% of the Company’s issued share capital on Qatar Exchange. An
extraordinary general assembly held on November 4, 2012 approved the amendments to the
Articles of Association in which it increased the ownership limit of General Retirement and Social
Insurance Authority (GRSIA). Subsequently, as per the instructions of the Supreme Council of
Economic Affairs, QP divested 20% of its stake in GIS to the GRSIA,

On May 31, 2012, the Group acquired 100% shares of Amwaj Catering Services Limited Q. P.S.C.,
a company incorporated in the State of Qatar. The Group has obtained control over the Subsidiary
in accordance with the sale and purchase agreement effective from June 1, 2012,

On April 30, 2014, the Group acquired additional 30% of the shares of Gulf Drilling International
Limited Q.5.C, a company incorporated in the State of Qatar that resulted to 100% ownership. The
Group has obtained control over the company, therefore, the company became a subsidiary of Gulf
International Services Q.5.C., in accordance with the sale and purchase agreement, effective from
May 1, 2014.

The consolidated financial statements ineorporate the financial statements of the below stated direct
subsidiaries:

Percentage Percentage
of holding of holding
Country of December 31, December 31,
incorporation 2017 2016

Al Koot Insurance &

Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.
Amwaj Catering Services Ny = .
Company Ltd. Q.P.S.C. Bty guti 100% 100%
Gulf Helicopters Company

Subsidiary Qatar 100%% 100%

e A
QS.C. Subsidiary Qatar 100 100%
Gulf Drilling International " .

Limited Q.8.C. Subsidiary Qatar 100% 100%



GULF INTERNATIONAL SERVICES Q.5.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the vear ended December 31, 2017

I. CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Also, included in the consolidated financial statements of one of the Group’s subsidiaries the below
joint ventures and subsidiaries:

Percentage Percentage
Of Holding Of Holding
Couniry of December December 31,

lncurparaﬂnu_ 31,2017 2016
United  Helicharters  Private  Joint
Limited venture India 6% 1604
Gulf Med Aviation Services Joint
Limited venture Malta 4994 491
Al Maha Aviation Company ("Al
Maha") Subsidiary Libya 92% 92%
Gulf Helicopters Company LLC,
Oman ("GHC Oman"} Subsidiary Oman T0% T0%
Redstar Havacilik Hizmetleri AS  Subsidiary Turkey 49%, 49%

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2017 were
approved by the Board of Directors and were authorised for issue on its behalf by the Chairman,
Vice Chairman and the Managing Director on February 7, 2018,

L. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REFORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs)

2.1 New and revised IFRSs that are mandatorily effective

The following new and revised IFR.Ss, which became effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2017, have been adopted in these consolidated financial statements. The application
of these revised [FRSs has not had any material impact on the amounts reported for the current and
prior years. but may affect the accounting for future transactions or arrangements.

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in the current year. The amendments
clarify how an entity should evaluate whether there will be sufficient future taxable profits against
which it can utilise a deductible temporary difference.

The application of these amendments has had no impact on the Group®s financial statements as the
Group is not imposed to income taxes.

Amendments o 1AS 7 Disclosure Inifiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in the current year. The amendments
require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes,

The Group’s liabilities arising from financing aciivities consist of borrowings (note 10), A
reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of these items is provided in note 10.
Consistent with the transition provisions of the amendments, the Group has not disclosed
comparative information for the prior period. Apart from the additional disclosure in note 10, the
application of these amendments has had no impact on the Group’s f[nancial statements,



GULF INTERNATIONAL SERVICES Q.5.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2017

2+

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs) (CONTINUED)

2.1 New and revised IFRSs that are mandatorily effective (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standardys 2014-2016 Cycle — Amendments to IFRS 12

The Group has applied the amendments to IFRS 12 included in the Annual lmprovements to [IFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle for the first time in the current year. The other amendments included in this
package are not yet mandatorily effective and they have not been early adopted by the Group (see
note 2.2).

IFRS 12 states that an entity need not provide summarised financial information for interests in
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures that are classified (or included in a disposal group that is
classified) as held for sale. The amendments clanify that this 15 the only concession from the
disclosure requirements of IFRS 12 for such interests,

The application of these amendments has had no effect on the Group's financial statements as none
of the Group’s interests in these entities are classified, or included in a disposal group that is
classified, as held for sale.

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yei effective

The Group has not applied the following new and revised [FRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

Effective for
annual periods
New and revised IFRSs beginning on or afier

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014 — 2016 Cycle January 1, 2018
amending [FRS 1 and [AS 28.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2005-2017 Cycle January 1, 2019
amending [FRS 3, IFRS 11, TAS 12 and IAS 23,

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency  Transactions and  Advance  January 1, 2018
Consideration

The interpretation addresses foreign currency transactions or
parts of transactions where:

e there is consideration that is denominated or priced in a
foreign currency;

e the entity recognises a prepavment asset or a deferred income
liability in respect of that consideration, in advance of the
recognition of the related asset, expense or income; and

= the prepayment asset or deferred income liability is non-
manetary.
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2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REFPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs) (CONTINUED)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

Effective for

annual periods
New and revised TFRSs beginning on or after
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tox Treatments January 1, 2019

The interpretation addresses the determination of taxable profit
{tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused (ax credits and tax
rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under
IAS 12, It specifically considers:

o Whether tax trealments should be considered collectively;
Assumptions for taxation authorities' examinations;
The determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and

#  The effect of changes in facts and circumstances.

Amendments to IFRS 2 Share Based Payment regarding January 1, 2018
classification and measurement of share based payment
transactions.

Amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts: Relating to the  January 1, 2018
different effective dates of IFRS 9 and the forthcoming new
insurance contracts standard.

Amendments to TAS 40 Tnvestment Property: Amends paragraph  January 1, 2018
57 to state that an entity shall transfer a property to, or from,

investment property when, and only when, there is evidence of a

change in use. A change of use occurs if property mects, or ceases

to meet, the definition of investment property. A change in

directors' intentions for the use of a property by itself does not

constitute evidence of a change in use. The paragraph has been

amended to state that the list of examples therein is non-

exhaustive.
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1,  APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs) (CONTINUED)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

Effective for
annual periods

New and revised IFRSs beginning on or after

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (revised versions in 2009, 2010, Januwary |, 2018
2013 and 2014) (a)

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 introduced new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets, [FRS 9
was  subsequently amended in October 2010 to include
requirements for the classification and measurement of financial
liabilities and for derecognition, and in November 2013 to include
the new requirements for general hedge accounting. Another
revised version of IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014 mainly to
include a) impairment requirements for financial assets and b)
limited amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through other
comprehensive income" (FVTOCI) measurement category for
certain simple debt instruments.

A finalised version of IFRS 9 which contzins accounting
requirements for financial Instruments, replacing IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measwrement. The
standard contains requirements in the following arcas:

« Classification and measurement: Financial assets are
classified by reference to the business model within which
they are held and their contractual cash flow characteristics.
The 2014 version of IFRS 9 introduces a "fair value through
other comprehensive income' category for certain debt
instruments. Financial liabilities are classified in a similar
manner to under TAS 39, however there are differences in the
requirements applying to the measurement of an entity's own
credit risk.

= Impairment: The 2014 version of IFRS 9 introduces an
‘expected credit loss' model for the measurement of the
impairment of financial assets, so it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before a credit loss is
recogmised

»  Hedge accounting: Introduces a new hedge accounting model
that 15 designed to be more closely aligned with how entities
undertake risk directors activities when hedging financial and
non-financial risk exposures,

» Derecognition: The requirements for the derecognition of
financial assets and liabilities are carried forward from 1AS
39,
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2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs) (CONTINUED)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

Effective for
apnual periods
New and revised IFRSs beginning on or after

Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Relating to January 1, 2019
prepayment features with negative compensation. This amends

the existing requirements in IFRS 9 regarding termination rights

in order to allow measurement at amortised cost (or, depending

on the business model, at fair value through other comprehensive

income) even in the case of negative compensation payments.

Impact assessment of IFRS @ Financial Instruments

Based on an analysis of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities as at 31 December 2017 on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that exist at that date, the directors of the Group
have assessed the impact of IFES 9 to the Group’s financial
statements as follows:

Classification and meggurement;
Financial assets:

As at December 31, 2017, the Group's financial investment
amounting to QR 591 982 million consisted of available-for-sale
investments (AFS), financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and held to maturity investments of QR 387.37 million, QR
201.029 million and QR 3.58 million, respectively. The Company
does not expect a significant impact on its balance sheet or equity
on applying the classification and measurement requirements of
IFRS 9. It expects to continue measuring at fair value all fimancial
assets currently held at fair value. Quoted equity shares currently
held as available-for-sale {AFS) valuing QR 360.27 million with
pains and losses recorded in OCI will, instead, be measured at fair
value through profit or loss, which will increase volatility in
recorded profit or loss. The corresponding portion of AFS
unrealised loss reserve of QR 5.26 million, related to those
securities, which is currently presented as accumulated OCI, will
be reclassified to retained eamings. Debt securities are expected
to be measured at fair value through OCI under IFRS 9 as the
Group expects not only to hold the assets to collect contractual
cash flows, but also to sell a significant amount on a relatively
frequent basis,
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs) (CONTINUED)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

Effective for
annual periods
New and revised IFRSs beginning on or after

Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: fcontinued)

The equity shares in a non-listed company are intended to be held
for the foreseeable future. No impairment losses were recognised
in profit or loss during prior periods for this investment, The
Company will apply the option to present fair value changes in
OCI, and, therefore, the application of 1IFRS 9 will not have a
significant impaet,

Debt instruments classified as AFS and HTM - Applying
Expected Credit Loss Model on Debt instruments may not result
in material impairment losses to be accounted as at Date of Initial
Application (“DIA™) due to absence of any losses/credit rating
deterioration since purchase of debt instruments. Historically, the
Company has nol recognized any impairment losses on AFS Debt
instruments and nothing o be reversed on DIA,

Equity instruments classified as AFS - Impairment assessment as
per LAS 39 will not be required to be made under IFES 9, however
the FVTOCI classification is irrevocable. Any gain or loss or fair
value reserve recognized on equity will not be recycled to the
profit or loss on sale of investment. Further, impairment losses
previously recognized in these investments are reversed to
Retained garnings by reducing the relevant fair value reserve in
the equity as at Jan 1, 2018.

Reinsurance receivables will continpe to be assessed for
impairment as per [FRS 4 and the Company does not hold any
hedge instruments,

Financial liabilities:

The Group did not have any financial liabilities classilied as
“FVTPL" and did not assess to classify any liability as FVTPL on
DIA of IFRS 9. Hence there is no indication of any impact on
Financial liabilities at Janvary 1, 2018,

All other financial assets and financial liabilities will continue to
be measured on the same bases as is currently adopted under IAS
39,
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs) (CONTINUED)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yel effective (continued)

Effective for

annual periods
New and revised IFRSs beginning on or after
Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial fnstruments: {continued)
{mpairment

Financial assets measurcd at amortised cost, finance lease
receivables and amounts due from customer under construction
contracts will be subject to the impairment provisions of IFRS 9.

The Group expects to apply the simplified approach to recognise
lifetime expected credit losses for its trade receivables, finance
lease receivables and amounts due from customer under long-
term contracts as required or permitted by IFRS 9. Accordingly,
the directors expect to recognise lifetime and 12-month expected
credit losses for these items respectively.

In general, the directors anticipate that the application of the
expected credit loss model of [FRS 9 will result in earlier
recognition of credit losses for the respective items and will
increase the amount of loss allowance recognised for these items.

Hedge accounting:

The Group does not have any hedged relationships with any party
as at December 31, 2017, Accordingly, there will not be any
impact on the financial position and/or financial performance of
the Group.

Disclosures:

IFRS 9 also introduces expanded disclosure requirements and
changes in presentation. These are expected to change the nature
and extent of the Company’s disclosures about its financial
instruments particularly in the year of the adoption of IFRS 9.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REFORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs) (CONTINUED)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yel effective (continued)

Effective for

annual periods
New and revised IFRSs beginning on or after
IFRS 15 Revenue fram Contracts with Customers January 1, 2018

In May 2014, IFRS 15 was issued which established a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. IFRS |5 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including IAS |8 Revenue,
LAS |1 Construction Contracis and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

The core prineiple of [FRS 15 is that an entity should recognize
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically. the standard introduces a S-step approach
to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contraci(s) with a customer.

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract.
Step 3: Determine the fransaction price.

Step 4: Allocate the tramsaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract.

= Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

&= & & @&

Under IFRS 13, an entity recognises when {or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied. i.e. when ‘contral’ of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in
IFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by IFRS 15,
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs) (CONTINUED)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yel effective (continued)

Effective for

annual periods
New and revised IFRSs beginning on or after
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued) January 1, 2018

Impact assessment of [FRS 15 Revemue from Contracts with
Cusiomers

The application of IFRS 15 from the annual period beginning
Janwary 1, 2018 will have an impact on the Group's financial
statements in respect of revenue from contracts with customers.
Based on analysis of the Group’s revenues from contracts with
customers as at December 31, directors of the Group have assessed
the impact of IFRS 15 to the Group’s financial statements as
follows:

Drilling

The directors have preliminarily assessed that revenue from the
rendering of drilling services and supply of related ancillary
services represents multiple performance obligations and
accordingly, revenue will be recognised for each of these
performance obligations when control over the corresponding
services is transferred to the customer, either at a point in time or
over a period of time. The transaction price will be allocated to
these different performance obligations based on the relative stand-
alone selling price of the services as agreed with the customer in
accordance with the terms of the contract. Revenue from drilling
mobilization and drilling services is recognized as a single
performance obligation due to significant integration of each
individual service. Drilling mobilization service is a relevant input
as it facilitates the performance of the drilling services promised to
the customer. Revenue from drilling mobilization and drilling
services is recopnized over time.

Aviation business

All customer contracts of the Group in respect of helicopter
services are billed currently at contracted fixed rates 1.e., monthly
and hourly, wherein the Group has the right to invoice the customer
for the amount that corresponds directly with the value of the
Group’s performance completed to date of the respective contracts
in accordance with [FRS 15: Bl16. Consequently, no impact is
assessed for the applicability of IFRS 15 on the group with respect

to aviation revenue.

Catering services

The application of this standard will have no impact on the revenue
from catering services.
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2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs) (CONTINUED)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)
Effective for

annual periods
New and revised IFRSs beginning on or after
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued) January |, 2018

Directors intend to use the modified transition approach of
transition to IFRS 15.

The directors anticipate that the application of IFRS 15 will have
an impact on the financial position and financial performance of
the Group related to the accounting of revenue from drilling
mobilization services. Drilling mobilization services revenue is
currently recognized upfront upon acceptance by the customer.
With the application of IFRS 13, the directors assessed that drilling
mobilization service only [acilitates the performance of the
obligation {(Le. drilling services) and does not provide a distinet
service to the customer on its own and revenue should be
recognized over the term of the contract.

The cost incurred related to the drilling mobilization qualifies to be
recognized as an asset in accordance with IFRS 15 requirements.
The asset recognized shall be amortized on a sysiematic basis that
is consistent with the transfer of the services 1o the customer (i.e.
over the term of contract).

Upon adoption of IFRS 13, revenue from drilling mobilization
service will be deferred over the term of the contract resulting in
recognition of contract liability (deferred revenue) in the statement
of financial position. Drilling mobilization cost incurred prior to
fulfilling the performance obligation will be capitalized as contract
asset in the statement of financial position and amortized over the
period of the performance of the obligation. Furthermore, the
directors anticipate that the cumulative effect of deferral in
recognition of drilling mobilization revenue and cost is expected to
have an impact on the retained earnings.

Amendments to [IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers  January 1, 2018
to elarify three aspects of the standard (identifying performance

obligations, principal versus agent considerations, and licensing)

and to provide some transition relief for modified contracts and

completed contracts.
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2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (TFRSs) (CONTINUED)

2.2 New and revised 1FRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

Effective for

annual periods
New and revised IFRSs beginning on or after
IFRS 16 Legses Janwary 1, 2019

IFRS 16 specifies how an IFRS reporter will recognise, measure,
present and disclose leases. The standard provides a single lessee
accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases unless the lease term is 12 months or less
or the underlying asset has a low valuge. Lessors conlinue 1o
classify leases as operating or finance, with IFRS 168"s approach
to lessor accounting substantially unchanged from its
predecessor, IAS 17,

Impact assessment of [IFRS 16 Leases

As at December 31, 2017, the Group has certain non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of QR. 86.23 million, IAS 17 does
not require the recognition of any right-of-use asset or liability
for future payments for these leases; instead, certain information
is disclosed as operating lease commitments in Note 30. A
preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will
meet the definition of a lease under IFRS 16, and hence the Group
will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low value or
short-term leases upon the application of IFRS 16. The new
requirement to recognise a right-of-use asset and a related lease
liability is expected to have a significant impact on the amounts
recognised in the Group’s financial statements and the directors
are currently assessing its potential impact. It is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the financial effect until the
directors complete the review.

Amendments 1o IAS 2B Investment in Associates and Joint January 1, 2019
Ventures: Relating to long-term interests in associates and joint

ventures. These amendments clarify that an entity applies [FRS 9

Financial Instruments to long-term interests in an associate or

Jjoint venture that form part of the net investment in the associate

or joint venture but to which the equity method is not applied.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs) (CONTINUED)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

Effective for
annual periods

New and revised IFRSs beginning on or after

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments; Disclosures  When IFRS 9 is first applied
relating to disclosures about the initial application of IFRS 9.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures relating to the When IFRS 9 is first applied
additional hedge accounting disclosures (and consequential

amendments) resulting from the introduction of the hedge

accounting chapter in IFRS 9.

IFRS 17 fnsurance Contracis January 1, 2021

IFRS 17 requires insurance liabilities to be measured at a current
fulfilment value and provides a more uniform measurement and
presentation approach for all insurance contracts. These
requirements are designed to achieve the goal of a consistent,
principle-based accounting for insurance contracts. IFRS 17
supersedes IFRS 4 Mnsurance Contracts as of 1 January 2021.

Amendments to TFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and  Effective date deferred

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventwres (2011)  indefinitely. Adoption is still
relating to the treatment of the sale or contribution of assets from  permitted,

and investor to its associate or joint venture,

Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments will be adopted
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements as and when they are applicable and adoption of
thesc new standards, interpretations and amendments, except for IFRS 9, IFRS |15 and IFRS 16,
may have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group in the period of
initial application.

Management anticipates that IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning January |, 2018 and that IFRS 16 will be
adopted in the Group’s financial statements for the annual period beginning January 1, 2019, The
application of IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 may have significant impact on amounts reported and
disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial statements m respect of revenue from
contracts with customers and the Group's fnancial assets and financial Habilities and the
application of IFRS 16 may have significant impact on amounts reported and disclosures made
the Group’s consolidated financial statements in respect of its leases.

“19=
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), its Articles of Association and applicable
provisions of the Qatar Commercial Companies” Law,

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis except for
available-for-sale financial assets and [inancial assets at fair value through profit and loss which
have been measured at fair value,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigque (Note 33).

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or lability at the measurement date.

For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

(i) Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

(i) Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

(iii} Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Qatari Rivals (QR), which is the Group’s
functional and presentation currency and all values are rounded to the nearest thousands (QR "000),
except when otherwise indicated. The principal accounting policies are st out below.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Gulf International

Services ().5.C. and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to
as “the Group™). Control is achieved when the investor:

® has the power over invesice
® s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its invelvement with the investee; and
= has the ability to use its power to-affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of three elements of control listed above.

=20 -
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over
the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it
power, including:

o the size of the Company’s holding or voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings
of the other vote holders;

= potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;

# rights arising from other contractual amrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the
current ability 1o direct the relevant activities at the time the decisions need to be made, including
voting patterns at previous sharcholders® meeting.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expense of the
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the Company gains control until the date
when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit and loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to non-controlling interests. Total profit or loss of the subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Company’s accounting policies.

Changes in Company s ownership interest in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in subsidiaries that do not result in the Company
losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions, The carrying amounts
of the Company’s interest and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interest in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interest are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed 1o the owners of the Company,

When the Company loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in profit and loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the agpregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interests and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Company had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary {i.c. reclassified to profit and loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified / permitted by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when the control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under IAS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture,

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
All material inter-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised gains from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements,
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&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of
the scquisition-date fair values of the assels transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are penerally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value.

Croodwill

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any nen-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as a bargain purchase

gain,

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any,

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units {or groups of cash-generating units) that is expectéd to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment anoually, or
more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goedwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. An impairment loss recognised for poodwill is not reversed in subsequent

periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investment in joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement, Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Under equity method of accounting,
an investment in joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter o recognise the Group's share of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the joint venture. When the Group's share of losses of joint venture
exceeds Group's interest in that joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has imcurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
venture.

A joint venture is accounted for using equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
a joint venture. On the acquisition of investment in a joint venture, any excess over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in consolidated profit or loss in the period in which
investment was acquired,

The requirements of 1AS 3% are applied to determine whether it is necessary to recognise any
impairment loss with respect to Group’s investment in a joint venture. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount with its carrying value. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with 1AS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
increases subsequently.

The Group discontinues the use of equity method of accounting from the date when the investment
ceases to be a joint venture.

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have the rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relaling to the
arrangement, Joint control is contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exits
only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control,

When a group entity undertakes its aclivities under joint operations, the Group as a joint operator
recognises in relation to its inferest in joint operation:

Its assets, including its share of assets held jointly,

Its liabilities, including its share of liabilities incurred jointly.

Its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from joint operation
Its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by joint operation

Its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.

& & @& & »
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition
Revenue i3 measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

Premiums earned

Premiums and reinsurance premiums are taken into income over the terms of the policies to which
they relate. (Gross insurance and reinsurance written premiums comprise the total premiums
receivable for the whole period of cover provided by contracts entered into during the accounting
period. They are recognised on the date on which the policy commences.

Uneamed premiums represent the portion of net premiums written relating to the unexpired period
of coverage calculated at actual number of days method (daily pro rata basis). The change in the
provision for unearned premium is taken to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in order that
revenue is recognised over the period of risk.

Net commission income and expenses

Commission income is earned from the reinsurer for the premium ceded during the year, Similarly,
the commission expense is incurred for the insurance companies for the reinsurance premium
written, The excess of the commission income over the commission expense is recognized as net
commission income during the vear,

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportionate basis using the effective interest method,
taking into account of the principal amount invested and the interest rate applicable.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividends is established.

Fee income
Initial and other front-¢nd fees received for rendering investment management services are deferred
and recognised as revenue when the related services are rendered,

Revenue from drilling services

Revenue represents rig rental and supply of related ancillary services income earnéd and invoiced
during the year, in accordance with the terms of the contracts entered into with customers. Rig
maobilisation fees received to mobilise a drilling unit at the commencement of a contract are
recognised as income in the period it i1s received and associated costs are expensed as incurred.
Costs incurred to relocate drilling units for which a contract has not been secured are expensed as
incurred.

Aviarion revenue
Contractual aviation revenues are recognised based on the following:

Monthly fixed fees on a time proportion basis, and; variable fees according to the number of
flying hours.

Mon contractual aviation revenues are recognised based on variable fees according to the number
of flying hours,
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from catering

Revenue arising from provision of catering services, manpower, function sales for events and other
services is recognised when the related services are rendered to the customers. The amount of
revenue recognised for the supply of services are based on the terms of catering and other refated
service agreements with counferpartics,

Claims and expense recognition

Claims
Claims incurred consist of amounts payable to contract holders and third parties and related loss
adjustment expenses, net of salvage and other recoveries and are charged to income as incurred.

Gross outstanding claims comprise the gross estimated cost of claims incurred but not settled at the
end of the reporting period, whether reported or not. Provisions for reported claims, but not settled
as at the end of the reporting period, are made on the individual case estimates. In addition, a
provision based on a range of historical trends, empirical data and current assumptions is
maintained for the cost of settling claims incurred but not reported at the end ol the reporting period.

Reinsurers ' share of clatims
Reinsurance claims are recognised when the related gross insurance claim is recognised according
to the terms of the relevant contract,

Reinsurance

The Group enters into agreements with other parties for reinsurance purposes, in order to minimize
financial exposure from large claims, in the normal course of business for all of its business classes.
Reinsurance contract assets represent balances due from reinsurance companies. Recoverable
amounts are estimated in & manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision and are in
accordance with the reinsurance contract.

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do net relieve the Group from its obligations to policvhelders.

Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance are recognised as income and expenses in the same
manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business, taking into account the
product classification of the reinsurance business,

Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at the end of each reporting period or more
frequently when an indication of impairment arises during the reporting year. Impairment occurs
when there is objective evidence as a result of an event that occurred afier imitial recognition of the
reinsurance asset that the Group may not receive all outstanding amounts due under the terms of
the contract and the event has a reliably measureable impact on the amounts that the Group will
receive from the reinsurance companies. The impairment loss is recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Reinsurance contract liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Amounts payabie
are esimated in a manner consistent with the associated reinsurance contract,

Premiums and claims are presented on a gross basis for both ceded and assumed reinsurance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Reinsurance (continued)

Deferred aoguisition cosis (DAC)

DAC are amortised over the period in which the related revenues are carmned, The reinsurers” share
of deferred acquisition costs 1s amortised in the same manner as the underlying asset amortisation
is recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

An impairment review is performed at each reporting date or more frequently when an indication
of impairment arises. When the recoverable amount is less than the carrying value, an impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. DAC are also considered in the
liability adequacy test for each reporting period.

DAC are derecopnised when the related contracts are either settled or disposed of.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS™) data for its ordinary shares, Basic
and diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary sharcholders of
the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditures directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working
condition for its intended use.

Depreciation is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight line basis over
the estimated useful lives of items of property. plant and equipment. Land is not depreciated.

The depreciation methods and useful lives as well as residual values are reassessed annually.

Capitalised maintenance expenditures represent major overhaul and inspections to aircrafts. The
expenditures are depreciated over the estimated flying hours based on the nature of the overhaul
and type of aircraft,

The estimated useful lives are as fallows:

Buildings 10 - 20 vears
Aircrafis 5 - 10 years
Plant and machinery 2 -7 years
Rigs 15 - 30 years
COther property and equipment:

Ground and radio equipment and tools 4 - f years
Motor vehicles 4 -5 years
Fumniture, fixtures and office equipment 3 - 7 years
Computers 3 vears
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment on an annual
basis for events or changes in circumstances which indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated
recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount. This review indicated
that the revised expected actual use of rigs was longer than the previously estimated useful lives
used for depreciation purposes in the Group's financial statements, As a result, effective January
1. 2017, the Group changed its estimates of the useful lives to better reflect the estimated periods
during which these assets will remain in service. The estimated useful lives of the rigs that
previously from 10 to 25 years were increased to 15 to 30 years. The effect of this change in
estimate will reduce 2017 depreciation expense by QR 53,801,793, and increasze net income in 2017
by the same value.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrving
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will
flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The cost of day-to-day servicing of
property, plant and equipment is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as the
expense is incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is
based on the average cost method and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories
and bringing them to their existing location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. Provision is made for obsolete and slow-moving items based on management's
Judgement.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable to acquisition or construction of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, are capitalised
as part of cost of the asset up 1o the date of the asset being qualified for use. Other borrowing costs
are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. For the purpose of determining
interest available for capitalization, the costs related to these borrowings are reduced by any
investment income on the temporary investment of the borrowing.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognized separately from goodwill are
initially recognized at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).
Subsequent to initial recognition. intangible assets acquired in a business combination are reported
at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Intangible assets (continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal. or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use, Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 1s estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yel available for use are tested
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Financial Instruments

Finaneial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.

Financial assets

All financial assets are recognised and derecognised on trade date where the purchase or sale of'a
fimancial asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the
timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus
transaction costs, except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss,
which are initially measured at fair value.

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL™), available-for-sale investments, held to maturity investments and
loans and receivables, The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Effective mterest rate method

The effective interest method is a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a financial asset and
of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financicl assets af fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL where the financial asset is either held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

(i} it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future;

{(ii) on initial recognition it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

(iii) it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

(i) such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise anse;

{ii) the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
the Group’s documenied risk management or investment strategy, and information about the
grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

(iii) it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and 1AS 39 Finangial
Instruments: Recogoition and Measurement permits the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in the
consolidated statement ol profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset. Fair
value i8 determined in the manner described in Note T,

Held-to-maturity fincncial assels

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity dates that the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold to
maturity. Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less any impairment.

-29.



GULF INTERNATIONAL SERVICES Q.8.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2017

3l

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (continued)

Available for sale (AFS) financial assets

AFS investments are non-derivative financial assets that are cither designated as AFS or are not
classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (¢) financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss.

Listed redeemable notes held by the Group that are traded in an active market are classified as AFS
and are stated at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The Group also has investments in
unlisted shares that are not traded in an active market but that are also classified as AFS financial
assets, Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised directly in equity in the
fair value reserve, with the exception of impairment losses, interest calculated using the effective
nterest method and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary assets, which are recognised
directly in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Where the investment is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in the fair value
reserve is taken to the consclidated statement of profit or loss,

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
when the Group's right to receive the dividends is established.

Lowans amd receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market, After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The losses arising from impairment
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Accounts receivables

Accounts receivables are stated at original invoice amount less a provision for any uncellectible
amounts. A prevision for doubtful debts is made when collection of the full amount is noe longer
probable. Impaired debts are written-off when there is no possibility of recovery.

Insurance contract receivables

Insurance contract receivables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Subsequent to initial recognition, insurance
contract receivables are measured at amortised cost. The carrying value of insurance contract
receivables is reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable, with the impairment loss recorded in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Insurance contract receivables are derecognised when the derecognition criteria for financial assets
have been met.

Cash and cash equivalenis

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of
cash at banks and on hand, and short term deposits with original maturity of three months or less,
net of putstanding bank overdrafis, if any and cash restricted for dividends at banks.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognizes a
collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entivety, the difference between the asset's camying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised
in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each
reporting date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the investment have been affected,

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

{i}  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

(i)  default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

(iii) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation;
or

{iv) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference
between the asset’s camying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of retumn for a similar financial asset, Such impairment loss
will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through the
consolidated statement of profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial assets {(continued)

In respect of available for sale equity securities, impairment losses previously recognised through
the consolidated statement of profit or loss are not reversed through the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. In
respect of available for sale debt securities, impairment losses are subsequently reversed throuﬁ
consolidated statement of profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equily instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs,

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or other financial
liabilities.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

Interest bearing loans and borrowings are recognised initially at fair value of the amounts borrowed,
less directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest bearing loans
and borrowings are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with any
differences between the cost and final settlement values being recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss over the period of borrowings. Instalments due within one year at
amortised cost are shown as a current liability.

Gains or losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised.

Other payables and accruals
Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received,
whether billed by the supplier or not,

Insurance payables

Insurance payables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value
of the consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are measured at amortised cost,

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) arising
from a past event, and the costs to settle the obligation are both probable and able to be reliably
measured.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the statement of financial position date, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows,
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (continued)

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Provision for decommissiomng costy
Provision for decommissioning costs is recognized for the future renovation costs, costs of
dismantling installations and restoring leased labour camps.

Liabilities for decommissioning costs are recognised when the Company has an obligation to
restore the site to ifs original condition and when a reliable estimate of that liability can be made.
The amount recognised is the estimated cost of decommissioning, discounted to its net present
value and expected outflow of economic resources to settle this obligation upon expiration of the
lease agreement

The timing of recognition requires the application of judgment to existing facts and circumstances,
which can be subject to change. The carrying amount of the provision is reviewed annually to ke
account of such changes,

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derccognised when the obligation under the hability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Employvees’ end of service benefits

Defined confribution schemes - Ouiari employees

With respect to the Qatari employees, the Group makes contributions to the respective local
regulatory authorities as a percentage of the employees’ salaries in accordance with the
requirements of Law No. 24 of 2002 on Retirement and Pensions. The Group's share of
contributions to these schemes, which are defined contribution schemes under International
Accounting Standard (IAS) — 19 Employee Benefits are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the year to which they relate.

Expairiate employees

For the expatriate employees, the Group provides for employees' end of service benefits
determined in accordance with the requirements of Qatar Labour Laws. These unfunded charges
are made by the Group on the basis of employees” salaries and the number of years of service at
the reporting date. Applicable benefits are paid to employees on termination of employment with
the Group. The Group has no expectation of settling its employees’ end of service benefits
obligation in the near future and hence have classified this as a non-current liability.

Short term benefits
Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed
as the related service is provided.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign correncies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. All differences are taken to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rate as at the date of the initial transaction and are not subsequently restated. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was determined. All foreign exchange differences are taken to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss except when it relates to items where gains or losses are
recognised directly in equity, where the gamn or loss is then recognised net of the exchange
component in equity.

Foreign currency translation

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Qatari Riyal at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are translated at
exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on the
translation are taken directly to a separate component of equity. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which
it may earn revenues and incur ¢xpenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions
with any of the Group’s other components. An operating segment’s results are reviewed regularly
by the Board of Directors to make decisions abhout resources to be allocated to the segment and
assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available (see Note 31).

Segment results that are reported to the Board of Directors include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise
mainly the Parent Company other assets and, related general and administrative expenses.

Dividend distributions

Dividend distributions are at the discretion of the Group. A dividend distribution to the Group’s
shareholders is accounted for as a deduction from retained earnings. A declared dividend is
recognised as a liability in the period in which it is approved in the meeting of the Board of
Directors,

Leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any

incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Contribution to Qatar Sports and Social Fund

Pursuant to the CQatar Law No. 13 of 2008 and the related clarifications issued in 2011, which is
applicable for all Qatari listed shareholding companies with publicly traded shares, the Group has
made an appropriation of 2.5% of its net profit to a state social fund.

SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS, ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in note 3, management
is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assels
and liabilities that are not readily apparent [rom other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that peried or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that management
has made in the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in consolidated financial statements:

Classification of investments

Management decides on the acquisition of an investment whether to classify it as available for sale
or financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The Group classifies investments as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss if the investment is classified as held for trading and upon
initial recognition it is designated by the Group as at [air value through profit or loss. All other
investments are classified as available for sale.

Classification of investments in components.as subsidiary

Whilst the Giroup may own less than 51% of interest in certain components, based on the contractual
agreement between the Group and other investors, the Group has the assignment to direct the
relevant activities of components. Therefore, the management concluded that these components are
subsidiaries.

Operating segments ageregation

The Group has disclosed the information of operating segments based on the economic indicators,
technology and marketing strategies with considerations to the economic characteristics of each
segment. The Group aggregates each segment with similar economic characteristics using the
appropriate judgement.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS, ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
Key sources of estimation ancertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year:

Impairment of tangible assets

The Group’s management tests annually whether tangible assets have suffered impairment in
accordance with accounting policies stated in note 3. The recoverable amount of an asset is
determined based on value-in-use method. This method uses estimated cash flow projections over
the estimated useful life of the asset discounted using market rates.

Tangible assets weeful lives

The Group’s management determines the useful lives and related depreciation or amortization
charge. The depreciation or amortization charge for the year will change significantly if actual life
is different from the estimated useful life of the asset.

Residual valves of praperty and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated residual values of its property and equipment
for caleulating depreciation. This estimate is determined after considering the expected value which
the entity will receive at the end of the asset’s useful lives,

Impairment of receivables

The Group’s management reviews periodically items classified as receivables to assess whether a
provision for doubtful debts should be recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Management estimates the amount and timing of future cash {lows when determining the level of
provisions required. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions about several factors
involving varying degrees of judgement and uncertainty.

Impairment of available for sale financial assets

The Group follows the guidance of [AS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and measurement™
to determine when an available for sale investment is impaired. This determination reguires
significant judgment. In making this judgement, the Group assesses, among other factors, whether
objective evidence of impainment exists.

Claims made under insurance contracts

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to income as incurred based on the estimated
liability for compensation owed to contract holders or third parties damaged by the contract holders.
Liabilities for unpaid claims are estimated using the input of assessments for individual cases
reported to the Group and management estimations for the claims incurred but not reported. The
method for making such estimates and for establishing the resulting liability is continually
reviewed, Any difference between the actual claims and the provisions made are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year of settlement.

Provision for outstanding elaims

Considerable judgement by management is required in the estimation of amounts due to contract
holders and third parties arising from claims made under insurance contracts. Such estimates are
necessarily based on significant assumptions about several factors involving varying, and possible
significant, degrees of judgement and uncertainty and actual results may differ from management’s
estimates resulting in future changes in estimated liabilities.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS, ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

In particular, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims reported at
the end of the reporting period and for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred but not yet
reported (IBNR) at the end of the reporting period. The primary technique adopted by management
in estimating the cost of notified and IBNR claims, is that of using past claim settlement trends to
predict future claims settlement trends.

Claims requiring court or arbitration decisions are estimated individually. Independent loss
adjusters normally estimate property claims. Management reviews its provisions for claims
incurred, and claims incurred but not reported (IBNR), on a quarterly basis.

Ulnearned premiums

The provision for unearned premiums represents that portion of premiums received or receivable
that relates to risks that have not yet expired at the reporting date. The provision is recognized when
contracts are entered into and premiums are charged, and is brought to account as premium income
over the term of the contract in accordance with the pattern of insurance service provided under the
contract, Unearned premiums are calculated on a daily pro rata basis.

Reinswrance confract

The Group is exposed to disputes with, and possibility of defaults by, its reinsurance companies.
The Group monitors on a quarterly basis the evolution of disputes with and the strength of its
reinsurance companies,

Liability adequacy fest

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether its recognized insurance liabilities
are adequate using current estimates of future cash flows under its insurance contracts. If that
assessment shows that the carrying amount of its insurance habilities is inadequate in the light of
estimated future claims flows, the entire deficiency is immediately recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Accrued income

Accrued income meludes cost of services plus profit margin based on the rates approved in the
service contracts. These estimates are based on the service performed in the normal course of
business and best information available to management at that point in time,

Provision for slow moving imventories

Inventories are held at the lower of cost and net realisable valug, When inventories become old or
obsolete, an estimate is made of their net realisable value. For individually significant amounts,
this estimation is performed on an individual basis. Amounts which are not individually significant,
but which are old or obsolete, are assessed collectively and a provision is applied according to the
inventory type and the degree of ageing or obsolescence, based on historical selling prices.

Al the end of reporting date. gross inventories were QR 264,855 thousand (2016: QR 273,648
thousand) against which a provision for slow moving and obsolete inventories amounting QR
62,739 thousand (2016: QR 55,034 thousand) has been made. Any difference between the amounts
actually realised in future periods and the amounts expected will be recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss,
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For the year ended December 31, 2017

4.

SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS, ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for decommissioning costs

Management estimates decommissioning costs of labour camps based on its best estimate of the
substantial costs for renovation, costs of dismantling installations and restoring these leased
facilities into its original condition at the end of the lease term, These obligations were estimated
taking into account the risks and uncertainties that surrounded the leased facilities and based on
current market conditions and industry experience. While it is believed that the assumptions used
in the estimation of such costs are reasonable, significant changes in these assumptions may
materially affect the recorded expense or obligations in the future periods,

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units o which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
management to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value. Management believes that goodwill is
not impaired as of the reporting date.

Tax liahility on foreign operations

The Group has recognized certain accruals for estimated liability for taxation for its operations in
Libya. The management prepared such accruals based on deemed profit and at a certain rate of tax
applicable in Libya.

Retivement of rig

The Group’s management determines retirement of rigs based on the internal assessment of the
rigs. This assessment considers other factors such capability, sustainability and marketability,
current stacked position and significant capital expenditures required to upgrade the rig to some
reasonable conditions,

Operating lease commitments - the Group as lessee

The Group has entered into contract of lease for some of the office space it oceupies. The Group
has determined that all significant risks and benefits of ownership on these properties will be
retained by the lessor. In determining significant risks and benefits of ownership. the Group
considered, among others, the significance of the lease term as compared with the EUL of the
related asset. The Group accordingly accounted for these as operating leases.

Operating lease commitments - the Group ay lessor

The Group has entered into commercial contract on its rigs for drilling services. The Group has
determined that it retains all significant risks and rewards of ownership of these rigs as the Group
considered among others the length of the lease term as compared with the EUL of the assets,

Fair valuation of investments
The determination of fair values for unguoted investments requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that may affect the reported amount of assets at the date of financial statements,

Monetheless, the actual amount that is realised in a future transaction may differ from the current

estimate of fair value and may still be outside management estimates, given the inherent uncertainty
surrounding valuation of unguoted investments (also refer Note 33 for fair value hierarchy).
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5  GOODWILL

December 31, December 31,

2017 2016

QR “000 QR “000
Cost 303,559 303,559
303,559 303,559

On May 31, 2012, the Group acquired 100% shares of Amwaj Catering Services Limited Q.P.5.C.
(the “Acquiree™), a company incorporated in the State of Qatar. The Acquiree is engaged in catering
activities inside the State of Qatar. The Group has obtained control over the subsidiary in accordance
with the Sale and Purchase Agreement effective from June 1, 2012.

Goodwill related to the acquisition has been allocated to the catering segment and their cash
generating units (CGUs). The recoverable amount of the Catering Segment has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by
the Board of Directors covering a five-year period. The pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow
projections is 10% and cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a 3% growth
rate that is the same as the long-term average growth rate for the eatering industry. It was concluded
that the recoverable amount exceeded the carrying value of goodwill. As a result of this analysis,
management has not recognised any impairment charge against goodwill.

Key assumptions wsed in value in use calcwlations:

The calculation of value in use for the catering segment is most sensitive to the following
assumptions:

- Free cash flow for the firm (FCFF).
- Discount rates.
- Growth rates used to extrapolate cash fTows beyond the forecast period.

Free cash flow for the firm- FCFF represents the net amoun! of cash that is generated for the
company, consisting of expenses and changes in net working capital and investments.

Discount rates — Discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risks specific to the
catering segment, taking into consideration the time value of money and individual risks of the
underlying assets that have not been incorporated in the cash flow estimates. The discount rate
calculation is based on the specific circumstances of the Group and its operating segments and is
derived from its weighted average cost of capital (WACC), The WACC takes into account both
debt and equity, The cost of equity is derived from the expected return on investment by the
Group's investors, The cost of debt is based on the interest bearing borrowings the Group is obliged
to service. Segment-specific risk is incorporated by applying individual beta factors. The beta
factors are evaluated annually based on publicly available market data.

Growth rate estimates — Rates are based on published industry research.
Sensitivity lo changes in assumptions

Management believes that no reasonably possible change in any of the above key assumptions
would cause the carrying value of the unit to materially exceed its recoverable amount.

=39



.l.n.uql.

658'86E°L PELRL] LBOLST rSETY) EE1'SY 962'C
19L°617°L £67°957 FLTLST 980090 789'8. 97806
616'PTE'S - 190°€6 08L'1S8'T 8L0'08 -~
(00L"92) - (868) (708'sT) o= =
L6186t - £C0'8L [Z8' 11t £5E°8 ot

IV Es8'T = 9f6'S1E 19.°¢9t' SEL'1L o
(608°615) - voz'12) (509°867) - =
£88°9LC = 099"/ PLTb6Y EF6'L =
8PE'965°T - L' TIT T60°0LT'E 78.'€0 -
89P0l £6T05T SETORE YOS BSF'G DOL'RST 9806
(951'82) -~ (zZ06) (P$T'LD) w =+
{9¥1) (Ceg1L) 961 89604 <8 -

10£°08¢€ $56'811 81a'L FOS'E6 S6L'TF 0£S'88

18226101 PELBLI £T0'ELS BYE TZE'S 088911 967°C
(06t 19%) (0956 1) (1+r' 20 “(68F'611) - =

- (8£8'94<7]) 961'8L ZZ1I'6PP'l 07561 w4

SHT E6Y [£6 058 Z16'8T 616°ET1 EES°E =
9.1'096'6 10Z'80T°1 0cE 8y O5L°L01'8 LT8EH 967'Z

000, 4D 000, M0 000, ¥ 000, MO 000, MO 000, 4O
[EIDT, ssagand wawdinba Adaurgaem sauIppng puE| plogaaig
“WE-H A0 4 pue Saadosd pue JueE]
renden NE1iiTy)

9107 *1 £ 29qWa0a( 1V
LTOZ ‘1€ 12quasaq 1y
:INJEA YOO 13N

LT0T ‘1§ Jaqmasa(] 1e aduejeg
spo-almSEsodsip 01 Funejay
Jead a1 Joj afmeyg)

L10T *| Asenuep 12 souR|Rg
spo-aumsesodsip 01 Funejay
Jmad alpy 1) aBimyy

910T | AJenue[ je soue[eg

suoneardap puemmnaay

LT0T "1€ 19quiadaq] je aduwjeg
sppo-aium s esodsic]
sJajsuRl ]
SUORIPPY

L10T °1 AEnue[ 1B 20uUBjRY
spjo-aum siesodsic
slapsel |
suonippy

910z | Arenuer je poue|ey

11807)

INTWAINOT ANV INVTd ‘ALdAd0dd

9

LI0T 1 £ Jaquiada(] papua Jeak ay Jog

SINAWALYLS TVIONVNII ALVAITOSNOD dH.L O1 SHLON

'0'8"0 SADIAYMAS TYNOLLYNILINI 3TND



GULF INTERNATIONAL SERVICES Q.5.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2017

b.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
Notes:

6.1 The depreciation charge has been allocated in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as

follows:
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
QR 000 QR 000
Direct costs 490,593 566,680
General and administrative expenses (Note 27) 7.604 10,203
498,197 576,883

.2 The encumbrances and liens on property, plant and equipment, if any are outlined in Note 19,

6.3 During the year 2016, one of the Group’s subsidiaries, Gulf Drilling International Limited .5.C,
had written off Al Rayyan rig with a net book value amounting QR. 132.93 million. The rig has
been off contract with Occidental Petroleum since March 15, 2015 and the Company was unable
to market the rig since it does not meet any customer specifications.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

December 31, December
2017 31,
2016
QR ‘000 QR ‘000

As at January |, (Net book value) 2,224 3,336
Addition s =
Amortization during the year {1,112) (1,112)
As at December 31, (Net book value) 1,112 2,224

Intangible assets represent an air operating license in Turkey that has a definite useful life of 5 years,
HELD-TO-MATURITY FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group’s held-to-maturity investments consist of State of Qatar and other corporate bonds, At
December 31, 2017, the market value of these investments amounted to QR. 3.58 million (2016: QR.
85.47 million). During the year, an amount of QR 81.89 million matured and was liquidated.
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GULF INTERNATIONAL SERVICES Q.5.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2017

9.  AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

December 31, December
2017 31,2016
QR ‘000 QR 000

Qatari public shareholding companies 387,368 321,928
Unguoted securities 2 2

387,370 321,930
Cost at January |1, 309,691 293,219
Additions 165,859 58487
Disposais (54,488) (69,314)
Impairment o - (2,701)
Cost at December 31, 391,062 309,691
Cumulative fair value (loss)/gain {3,692) 12,239

387,370 321,930

All available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in Qatari Riyals.

10. INVENTORIES

December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
QR “000 QR ‘000

Ancillary spares 248,747 257,214
Catering inventories 16,108 16,434
264,855 273,648
Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolete items (62.739) (55,034)
202,116 218,614

Movement in provision for slow moving and obsolete items was as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
QR “000 QR 000
Balance at January 1, 55,034 40,780
Charge for the vear 7,705 14,254
Balance al December 31, 62,739 55,034
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GULF INTERNATIONAL SERVICES (Q.5.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2017

11. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER DEBIT BALANCES

December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
QR 000 QR 000
Trade receivables (from drilling business) 53,262 82,680
Trade receivables (from catering business) 61,600 01,882
Trade receivables (from aviation business) 114,765 bal. g2l
229,627 335,683
Less: Provision for doubtful debits (61,794) (44.971)
Met trade receivables 167,833 290,712
Reinsurance share of outstanding claims (Note 11.4) 257,386 333,782
Advance to suppliers 19,053 19,046
Accrued interest income 4,229 14,246
Refundable deposits and other receivables 6,273 --
Prepayments 9,895 15,336
Staff advances 7,713 7,753
Other debit balances 34,646 39302
507,028 720377

Nofes;
11.1 The aging of the trade receivables is presented in note 32 under the section of credit risk.
11.2 Movement in the provision for doubtful debts was as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2017 2016
QR 000 QR 000

Balance at January 1, 44,971 44,384
Provision during the vear 23,090 10,827
Reversals made during the year (6,267) {10,240}
Balance at December 31, 61,794 44,971

11.3 The average credit period given to customers is between 30 to 45 days. No interest is
charged on overdue receivables from customers. The Group provides for doubtful debts that
are past due for over one year.

11.4 Reinsurance share of outstanding claims was as follows:
2017 2016
QR ‘000 QR ‘000

Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
At January 1,
Reported claims 561,381 (333,782) 227,599 609,036 (325.864) 283072
IBNR 164,549 - 164,549 230,093 ~ 230,093
Total 7215930 (333,782) 302,148 839,129 (325,864) 513,265
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GULF INTERNATIONAL SERVICES Q.5.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2017

11. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER DEBIT BALANCES
(CONTINUED)

Movement during the year was as follows:

2017 2016
QR ‘000 QR "000
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
Reported
claims (98,745) 76,395 (22,350) (47,655) {7.918) {55,573)
IBNR
(16,000) - (16,000)  (65.544) : (65,544)
Total
(114,745) 76,395 (38,350)  (113,199) (7.918)  _(121,117)
2017 2016
QR ‘000 QR 000
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
A3l
December
Reported
claims 462,637 (257,386) 205,251 561,381 (333,782) 227,599
IBNE 148,549 - 148,549 | 64,549 = 164,549
Total 611,186 (257 .386) 353,800 725,930 (333,782) 192,148
1Z2. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
QR ‘000 QR ‘000
Held for trading (Note 12.1) 201,029 214,149
Notes:
12.1 These represent financial assets held with banks which are acquired and incurred

principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term or to take advantage
of short term market movements.

13. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

As at December 31, 2017, the Company has a fixed deposit with a local commercial bank with original
maturity of one year with an interest of 3%.



GULF INTERNATIONAL SERVICES ().8.C.

MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the vear ended December 31, 2017

14.

15.

16.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated statement of cash flows comprise of the
following consolidated statement of financial position amounts:

December December
31,2017 31,2016
QR “000 QR “000
Cash on hand 1,858 761
Cash at banks
- Current and call accounts 405,559 407,463
- Fixed deposits 186,360 389,530
- Time deposits with original maturities in excess of three
months 337,677 537970
Cash and bank balances as per consolidated statement of
financial position 931,454 1,335,724
Less: Time deposits with original maturities in excess of three
months (337,677) (537,970)
Less: Cash at banks - restricted for dividends (95,346) (100.210)
(433,023) (638,180)
Cash and cash equivalents as per consolidated statement of
cash flows 498,431 697 544

Notes:

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made
for varving periods of between one day and six months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the respective subsidiarics at interest of 3.30% (2016 2.85%).

SHARE CAPITAL
December December
31, 2017 31,2016
QR “000 QR 000
Issued and paid up
185,840,868 ordinary shares of QR 10 1,858,409 1,858,409

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company amended its Articles of Association to
comply with the new commercial law whereby Authorised capital of the Company was changed from
QR 10,000 milhon to GR 2,000 million.

LEGAL RESERVE
As required by Qatar Commercial Companies Law and the Company’s Articles of Association, 10%

of the profit for the year is to be transferred to the legal reserve until the reserve reaches a minimum
of 50% of the paid up share capital. This reserve is nol available for distribution.

4% -



GULF INTERNATIONAL SERVICES (Q.5.C,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2017

17.

18.

19,

GENERAL RESERVE

In two of the subsidiaries, Al Koot Insurance & Reinsurance Company S.A.Q. and Gulf Helicopters
Company 0.5.C, the general reserve is maintained in accordance with the provisions of their Articles
of Association to meet any unforeseen future events. The balance under this reserve is not available
for distribution, except in the circumstances specified in the Articles of Association of the respective
subsidiaries.

DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors has proposed no cash dividend for the year ended December 31, 2017 (2016:
QR. | per share amounting to QR. 185.8 million). The cash dividend for 2016 amounting to QR.

185.8 million was approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on February
26,2017,

The cash at bank restricted for dividends 1s presented as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
QR ‘000 QR *000
Balance at January 1, 100,210 104,115
Dividends declared during the year 185,841 185,841
Dividends paid during the year (190,705) (189,746)
Balance at December 31, 95,346 100,210
LOANS AND BORROWINGS
December 31, December 31,
17 2016
QR ‘000 QR 000
Various commercial borrowings (i) 4,639,330 4,900,767
Islamic Financing (ii)(iv) 339,735 461,067
Borrowings (iii) 166,400 208,000
5,145,465 5,569,834
Classified in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:
Mon-current portion 4,247 662 4,629,862
Current portion 897803 939,972
5,145,465 iSEr'-j,EE-'-i

Notes:

(i)  The borrowings are related to the Company and its subsidiaries companies, Gulf Helicopters
Company Q.5.C. (“GHC") and Gulf Drilling International Q.8.C. (*GDI™). These companies
have entered into various borrowing arrangements with different banks. All facilities in this
regard bear interest rates varying between LIBOR plus 0.60% - 2.75% (2016: LIBOR plus
0.60% - 2.27%). The loans are to be repaid in quarterly installments.
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GULF INTERNATIONAL SERVICES (Q.5.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2017

19. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The loans of GDI comprise of secured and unsecured loans. Secured loans with a carrying
value of QR. 1,040.67 million as at December 31, 2017 (2016; QR. 1,368.04 million), included
various collaterals such as creating first preferred mortgages on rigs and offshore assets in
favour of the lenders and granting the lender a right of set-off against the credit balances in
other accounts of the component maintained with the lender. GHC has not provided any
collateral apainst its loans.

(ii)  On May 23, 2012, the Company obtained a syndicated Murabaha facility of US$ 170 million
from a consortium of lenders to finance the acquisition of Amwaj Catering Services Company
Ltd. Q.P.S.C. The effective profit rate is LIBOR plus .75% (2016: LIBOR plus 1.75%). The
loan is repayable in 15 semi-annual installments and is unsecured.

On April 20, 2014, the Company obiained a syndicated Murabaha facility of TUSS &80 million
from a local Islamic Bank, along with the additional amount of USS 80 million, details in (iii)
below, to finance the acquisition of the additional 30% of Gulf Drilling International Q.8.C,
The effective profit rate is LIBOR plus 1.45% (2016: LIBOR plus 1.45%).

The loan is repayable in 15 semi-annual instalments and is unsecured.

(iii) On April 20, 2014, the Company obtained a loan of US$ 80 million from a local commercial
bank to finance the acquisition of the additional 30% of Gulf Drilling International G.5.C. The
effective interest rate is LIBOR plus 1.45% (2016: LIBOR plus 1.45%6). The loan is repayable
in 14 semi-annual instalments and is unsecured.

(iv) In May 2017, the Company has entered into a Master Murabaha facility of US$ 925 million
with an lslamic Bank. The proceeds of the facility will be utilized on the Company’s general
corporate purposes and the settlement or refinancing of the outstanding loan facilities. The loan
is unsecured and has an effective interest of LIBOR plus 2.70%, and repayable in Tump sum
upon maturity on December 31, 2023, The Company has drawn down from the Facility USS
151 million.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details chanpes in the Company’s lizhilities arising from financing activities,
including cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Company’s statement of cash flows as
cash flows from financing activities,

As al Financing Asat
January 1, 2017 cash Mows  December 31, 2017
QR 00 QR 0y QR ‘000
Various borrowings 4,900,767 (261.437) 4,639,330
Islamic borrowings 461,067 (121,332) 336,962
Mon-1slamic borrowings 208,000 (41,600) 169,173
5,569,834 (424.369) 5,145,465
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2017

20. EMPLOYEES® END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
QR ‘000 QR 000
Balance at January 1, 70,794 74,631
Charge for the year 16,406 18,961
Payments made during the year (10,443) (22,798)
Balance at December 31, 76,757 70,794
21. PROVISION FOR DECOMISSIONING COSTS
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
OR 000 QR 000
Balance at beginning of the year 92,088 85.460
Provisions during the yvear 18,743 6,628
Reversals made during the vear {41,980} -
68,851 92,088

Presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

Pecember 31, 2007 December 31, 2016

QR ‘000 QR 000
Current 42,897 -
Non-current 25,954 92,088
68.851 02.088

As per the contractual agreement with Qatar Petroleum, one of the Group®s subsidiary, Amwaj Calering
Services Company Lid. Q.P.5.C., has to return the leased facilities in original condition at the end of the
lease term. The Group provided provisions for the future renovation costs, costs of dismantling, installations
and restoring leased labour camps, The labour camps mainly consists of land, accommodation and common
areas including offices, mess halls and other associated facilities.

The obligation was estimated using prices current at the time of estimation. Allowances for project and
design team fees, other development and project costs, risk allowances, tender inflation and construction
inflation are excluded from the estimation. The assumptions and exclusions are in accordance with Royal
[nstitution of Chartered Surveyors cost estimating guide as a Works Cost Estimate.

During the year, the Group has reversed QR. 41.98 million of provisions relating to the demobilised three
camps in Ras Laffan namely RLC Camp 1, LGV Camp and LGV Village. The sites have been handed aver
to Qatar Petroleum and the Company has not spent any material decommissioning costs as a resull of Qatar
Petroleum’s use of the facilities and infrastructures. The reversal is due to Qatar Petroleum effectively
discharging the liability of the Group. Site clearance for the three camps has been received, thus relieving
Amwaj from any liabilitics. Additional provision of QR. 18.74 million (2016: QR. 6.62 million) has been
provided on the remaining camps.

The provisions made during the year are reflected in direct costs as disclosed in Note 24.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2017

22. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, INSURANCE PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
QR “000 QR 000
Trade payables 142,445 117.350
Unearned premium (Note 22.1) 126,581 60,032
Outstanding claims (Note 11.4) 611,185 725930
880,211 903,312
Fayables to insurance and reinsurance companies:
Reinsurance premiums payable 125,398 140,590
Advance management fees 526 1,793
Advance reinsurance commissions received 28,329 41,470
154,253 | 83,853
Accrued expenses 252,597 323.459
Provision for social and sports fund 2,125 1,674
Other payables 65,996 70,732
320,718 395,865
1,355,182 1,483,030
22.1 The movement of unearned premium during the year was as follows:
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
QR “000 QR 000
Balance at January 1, 60,032 119,329
Increased during the year 115,544 58,026
Released during the year (48.995) (117,323)
Balance at December 31. 126,581 60,033
23, REVENUE
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
QR ‘000 QR 000
Revenue from drilling 1.175,481 1,178,373
Revenue from catering services 452,926 837,244
Revenue from aviation business 531,550 533,722
(iross insurance revenue (Note 23,1) 335940 439 459
2,485,897 2,988,798
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23.

24,

REVENUE
23.] The details of gross insurance revenue are as follows:
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
QR “000 QR "000
Gross premiums (Note 23.2) 389,031 280,186
Met commission income 8,954 40,929
Change in unearned premiums (Mote 23.2) (72,045) 118,344
325,940 439,459
2332 The details of retained premiums and earned premiums are as follows:
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
QR “000 QR 000
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Met
Written
premiums 389,031 (125,118) 263,913 280,186 (127.016) 153,170
Change in
uneamed
premiums _ (72,045) 5,497 (66,548) 118344 (359,047) 59297
316,986 (119.621) 197,365 308,530 (186,063} 212467
DIRECT COSTS
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
QR 000 QR 000
Drilling business 1,056,243 1,066,263
Catering business 398,634 743,911
Aviation business 340,136 330,127
Gross insurance expense (Note 24.1) 240,060 318,659
2035073 2,458,960
24.1 The details of gross insurance expense were as follows:
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
QR ‘000 QR 000
Premium ceded to reinsurers (Note 23.2) 125,118 127.016
Met claims meurred (Mote 24.2) 119.821 122,521
Brokerage cost 618 10,075
Change in unearned premiums (Note 23.2) (5.,497) 59,047
240,060 318,659
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2017

24. DIRECT COSTS

24.2 The details of net claims incurred are as follows:
December 31, 20017 December 31, 2016
QR ‘000 QR 000
Gross Reinsurance MNet Gross Reinsurance __]'_N'gt_

Claims
settled 199,508 (41,638) 158170 328,118 {84, 480) 243,638
Outstanding
claims
adjustment (98,745) 76.396 (22,349) (47,655) (7,918) (55.573)
IBNR (16,000} - {16,000 (65.544) = (65,544)

85,63 34,758 119,821 214,919 (92 398) 122,521

15, FINANCE INCOME

December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
QR ‘000 QR 000
Interest on deposits from Mon-Islamic banks 27,514 28,260
26. OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES), NET
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
QR 000 QR 000
Loss from written off/damaged rig (Note 6.3) -- (132,934)
Net gain on sale of available-for-sale financial assets 3,702 3,962
Foreign exchange losses {610y -
Service fees 5,722 3,522
Dividend income 2,040 2,029
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 2,567 {777)
Miscellaneous income 5,770 1,918
19,191 (122,280)
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135.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

December 31, December 31,
2007 2016
QR ‘000 QR 000

Salaries and other benefits 138,664 155,056
Aviation related administrative expenses 26,472 29660
Rent 18,849 19,549
Depreciation (Note 6.1) 7,604 10,203
Recovery of management expenses from Qatar Petroleum (2,000) (8.,707)
Qatar Petroleum annual fee 7,766 B.448
Board member sitting fees 7,030 7120
Communication 6,467 5,953
Legal and professional fees 2,863 3,185
Public relations and advertisement expense 2,460 2,521
Travel 1,442 1,143
Qatar Exchange listing fees 1,009 953
Repairs and maintenance 613 B9
Printing and stationery 651 571
Provision for doubtful debts, net 9,904 587
Other expenses 14,585 11,393
244,379 248,534

HBELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Related parties represent associated entities, major shareholders, directors and key management
personnel of the Group, and entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such
parties. Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are approved by the Group’s management.

il Transactions with related parties included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
were as follows:
December 31, 2017 December 31,2016
QR “000 QR 000
Revenue Expenses Revenue Expenses

Qatar Petroleum ( Associate investor) 952,509 82,926 1077058 164,490
Rasgas Company Limited (Affiliate) 205,469 - 103,694 1,154
Qatar Gas Upstream (Affiliate) 50,705 418 59,103 456
Qatar Gas Operating Company
(Affiliate) 216,322 - 27,701 --
QAPCO (Affiliate) 9,869 7,158 10,930 --
Oceidental Petroluem ( Affiliate) - - 5,987 -
Oryx GTL (Affiliate) 11,908 - 4,728 -
QAFCO (Affiliate) 20,158 - 4,678 --
Qatalum { AfTiliate) 10,510 o 4526 -
Q-Chem (Affiliate) 2,041 - 1,975 -
Al Shaheen Services (AfMiliate) 14 12,596 -- 2,621
Qatar Fuel (Wogod) (Affiliate) 20,698 43,637 -- 45,927
Seef Limited {Affiliate) 3,563 - - -
Chhers (Affiliate) 206,770 - 4,690 692§

1,520,536 146,735 1,305,070 221.576
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28. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

29,

fii) Included in the amounts due from related parties are the following balances:
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
QR 000 QR 000
D from relared parties
Catar Petroleum 312,427 256,803
Rasgas Company Limited 67,455 18,441
Qatargas Operating Company 14,298 15,062
QAPCO 3,014 3,534
OATALUM 441 145
Oryx GTL 10,982 692
QAFCO 20,060 233
Muintajat 45 94
QCHEM - 18
Others 34,119 14,511
462,841 309,533

There was no movement in the provision for doubtful debts on due from related parties (2016: Nil).

fiii) Included in the amounts due to related parties are the following balances:
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
QR 000 QR *000
Due to related pariies
Qatar Fuel (Wogod) 3,70 2,712
Al Shaheen Holding Q.S.C. 1,247 -
Others 3,364 =
8312 2,712
December 31, Decembir 31,
2017 2016
QR ‘000 QR 000

Compensation of key management personnel
Salaries and other benefits* 46,048 58,963

*This includes the amounts charged by Qatar Petroleum for management services rendered (Note
n.

{iv) The receivables from related parties arise mainly from sale transactions. The receivables
are unsecured in nature and bear no interest. The payables to related parties arise mainly
from purchase transactions. The payables bear no interest.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share have been calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity
holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear;
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29.

30,

31.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

There were no potentially dilutive shares outstanding at any time during the year; therefore, the
diluted earnings per share are equal to the basic earnings per share.

December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
Profit for the year (QR *000) 84,980 66,961
Weighted average number of equity shares (thousand
shares) 185,841 185,841
Basic and diluted eamings per share (QR) 0.46 0.36
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
QR “000 QR 000
Coniingent lighilities
Guarantees against performance bonds 312,767 300 060
Claim under dispute 3,449 -

It is not anticipated that any malerial liabilities will arise from above which were issued in the
normal course of the business.

Cammitmenis
Capital commitments 2672N 621,422

The Group has entered into lease agreements for the lease of the various properties. The rental costs
in respect of these properties are accounted for as operating leases.

The future undiscounted lease commitments in respect of the above lease agreements are as follows:

2017 2016
QR 000 QR 000
Mot later than | vear 27,080 35,290
Later than | year and not longer than 3 years 46,099 62,858
Later than 5 years 13,057 34,022
86,236 132,170

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group has four reportable segments, as described below, by which the Group exercised the
appropriate judgement in applying the aggregation criteria to operating segments. The segments offer
different products and services with different economic indicators, and are managed separately
because they require different technology and marketing strategies. For each of the segments with
similar economic characteristics, the Board of Directors reviews internal management reports on at
least a quarterly basis. The following summary describes the operations in each of the Group's

reportable segments:
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31.

OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUETD)

Insurance; provider of a range of insurance and reinsurance services to QP and its subsidiaries
and other companies.

Aviation; provider of helicopter transportation services in Qatar and India. Also operating as a
provider of helicopter transportation services in Middle East and North Africa (MENA region).
The aviation segment includes the information relating to Gulf Helicopters Company’s joint
venture(s) and subsidiaries.

Drilling; related services to the QP Group and its international co-ventures.

Catering; Catering and manpower services to the QP Group and its affiliates as well as to other
third parties.
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GULF INTERNATIONAL SERVICES Q.5.C,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2017

31. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)

31.1 Reconciliation of reportable segments direct costs December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
Total direct costs for reportable segments 2,062,779 2,471,439
Elimimation of mter-segments direct costs (46,437) (36.211)
Depreciation associated to purchase price allocation 18,731 23,732
Consolidated total direct costs for the year 2,035,073 2,458 960
31.2 Reconciliation of reportable segments profii or loss December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
QR <000 QR 000
Total profit for reportable segments 131,137 155,880
Other un-allocable profit or loss represents profit or loss of
Parent Company including dividends from the subsidiaries 332,092 371,062
Profit on bargain purchase price and related additional
depreciation (13,2109 (57.397)
Elimination of dividends paid to parent company by _
subsidiaries (365.039) (402.584)
Consolidated profit for the vear 84,980 66,961
31.3 Reconciliation of reportable segments total assets December 31, December 31,
017 2016
QR ‘000 QR *000
Total assets for reportable segments 5898416 10,606,284
(Other un-allocahle assets 2,720 560 2,705,624
Elimination of investments in subsidiaries (2,270,840) (2.270.839)
Assets relating to purchase price allocation 159,340 172,519
Elimination of inter-segments assets (88,000) (96,152)
Consolidated total assets for the year 10,428,476 11,117,436
31.4 Reconciliation of reportable segments cash and bank December 31, December 31,
halances 2T 2016
QR “000 QR 000
Cash and bank balances for reportable segments 790,020 1,220,368
Other un-allocable assets 141,434 115,356
Consolidated cash and bank balances for the year 931,454 1,335,724

December 31, December 31,

31.5 Reconciliation of reportable segments total liabilities 2017 2016
QR ‘000 QR 000
Total liabilities for reportable segments 6,166,834 6,625,833
Other un-allocable liabilities 671,079 THE,985
Elimination of inter-segments liabilites ) (88,000) (96,152)
Consolidated total liabilities for the year 6,749,913 7,318,668
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2017

31. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)

December 31, 2017
31.6 Other material items Reportable
segment Consolidated
totals _Adjustments Totals
QR 000 QR 000 QR 000
Depreciation 484,987 13,210 498,197
Non-current assets 7,438,945 476,440 7,915,385
Finance income 24,418 3.096 27514
Finance cost (155,344) (17,045) (172,389)
December 31, 2016
Reportable Consolidated
segment lotals  Adjustments Totals
QR 000 QR ‘000 QR ‘000
Depreciation 553,151 23,732 576,883
MNon-current assets 71,360,136 491,904 8,052,040
Finance income 26,454 1,806 28,260
Finance expenses (107,684) {17,479) {125,163)

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Objective and policies
Overview

Financial instruments of the Group represent the Group’s financial assets and liabilities. Financial
assets include cash and bank balances, accounts and insurance contract receivables, due from
related parties, investment in securities and certain other assets. Financial habilities include loans
and borrowings, accounts and insurance payables. due to related parties and other certain
payables. Accounting policies for financial instruments are set out in Note 3.

The Group has exposure to various risks from its use of financial instruments, These risks can be
broadly classified as:

insurance risk;
credit risk;
liguidity risk,
markel risk: and
operational risk.

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management
of capital,
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32,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Risk management and governance framework of the Group

The primary objective of the Group’s risk and financial management framework is to protect the
Group’s shareholders from events that hinder the sustainable achievement of the set financial
performance objectives. Key management recognizes the critical importance of having efficient
and effective risk management systems in place.

Regulatory framework

The operations of the Group are subject to regulatory requirements within the State of Qatar,

Insurance risk
The principal risk the Group faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit
payments or the timing thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of
claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid and subsequent development of long-term claims.
Therefore, the objective of the Group is to ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover
these liabilities,

The above risk exposure Is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance
contracts. The variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of
underwriting strategy guidelines, as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements,

Regulatory framework risk

Regulators are primarily interested in protecting the rights of the policyholders and monitor
these rights closely to ensure that the Company is satisfactorily managing affairs for their
benefit, At the same time, the regulators are also interested in ensuring that Company maintains
an appropriate solvency position to meet unforeseen liabilities arising from economic disasters.

The operations of the Company are also subject to regulatory requirements within the
jurisdictions where it operates. Such regulations not only prescribe approval and monitor the
activities, but also impose certain restrictive provisions (e.g. capital adequacy) to minimize the
risk of default and insolvency on the part of the reinsurance companies to meet unforeseen
liabilities as these arise.

Freguency and amounis of claims

The frequency and amounts of claims can be affected by several factors. The Group underwrites
mainly energy, fire and general accident, marine and medical risks. These are regarded as short-
term insurance contracts as claims are normally advised and settled within one year of the insured
event taking place. This helps to mitigate insurance risk.

Fire and general accident - Property

Property insurance is designed to compensate contract holders for damage suffered to properties
or for the value of property lest. Contract holders could also receive compensation for the loss of
earnings caused by the inability to use the insured properties.

For property insurance contracts, the main risks are fire and business interruption.
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al.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Regulatory framework (continued)

These contracts are underwritten by reference to the replacement value of the properties and
contents insured. The cost of rebuilding properties and obtaining replacement contents and the
time taken to restart operations which leads to business interruptions are the main factors that
influence the level of claims.

Marine
Marine insurance is designed to compensate contract holders for damage and liability arising
through loss or damage to marine craft and accidents at sea resulting in total or partial loss of
Cargoes.

For marine insurance the main risks are loss or damage to marine craft and accidents resulting in
the total or partial loss of cargoes.

The underwriting strategy for the marine class of business is to ensure that policies are well
diversified in terms of vessels and shipping routes covered.

Health

Health insurances is insurance against the risk of incurring medical expenses among individuals
or the employees of corporate bodies. The strategy for the health class of business is to ensure
that policies are written within the group and by proper cession,

Reinsurance risk

In common with other insurance companies, in order to minimize financizl exposure arising from
large claims, the Group, in the normal course of business, enters into agreements with other
parties for reinsurance purposes. Such reinsurance arrangements provide for greater
diversification of business, allow management to control exposure to potential losses arising from
large risks, and provide additional capacity for growth. A significant portion of the reinsurance is
effected under treaty, facultative and excess-of-loss reinsurance contracts,

To minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurance insolvencies, the Group evaluates
the financial condition of its reinsurance companies and monitors concentrations of credit risk
arising from similar geographic regions, activities or economic characteristics of the reinsurance
companies.

Reinsurance ceded contracts do not relieve the Group from its obligations to policvholders and
as a result the Group remains liable for the portion of outstanding claims reinsured to the extent
that the reinsurer fails to meet the obligations under the reinsurance agreements.

Concentration of risks
The Group’s insurance risk relates to policies written in the State of Qatar only.

Sowrces of uncertatnty in the estimation of future claim payments

Claims on general insurance contracts are payable on a claims-occurrence basis. The Group is
liable for all insured events that occurred during the term of the contract, even if the loss is
discovered after the end of the contract term. As a result, a larger element of the claims provision
relates to incurred but not reported claims (IBNR) which are settled over a short to medium term
period.
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32.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Regulatory framework (continued)

There are several variables that affect the amount and timing of cash flows from these contracts,
these mainly relate o the inherent risks of the business activities carried out by individual contract
holders and the risk management procedures adopted. The compensation paid on these contracts
is the monetary awards granted for the loss suffered by the policy holders or third parties (for
third party liahility covers).

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in settling claims, net of the
expected subrogation values and other recoveries. The Group takes all reasonable steps to ensure
that it has appropriate information reparding its claims exposures. However, given the uncertainty
in establishing claims provisions, it is likely that the final outcome will prove to be different from
the original liability established.

The liability for these contracts comprise a provision for IBNR, a provision for reported claims
not yet paid and a provision for unexpired risks as at the reporting date. In calculating the
estimated cost of unpaid claims (both reported and not), the Group®s estimation techniques are a
combination of loss-ratio-based estimates (where the loss ratio is defined as the ratio between the
ultimate cost of insurance claims and insurance premiums eamed in a particular financial year in
relation to such claims) and an estimate based upon actual claims experience using predetermined
formula where greater weight is given to actual claims experience as time passes.

Sensieivity of changes in assumption

The Group does not have any single insurance contraet or a small number of related contracts
that cover low frequency, high-severity risks such as earthquakes, or insurance contracts covering
risks for single incidents that expose the Group to multiple insurance risks. The Group has
adequately reinsured for insurance risks that may involve significant litigation. A 10% change in
the gencral insurance claims provision will have a decrease of QR. 11.98 million on the
consolidated statement of profit or loss (2016: QR 12.25 million).

Claims developmenit

The Group maintains strong reserves in respect of its insurance business in order to protect against
adverse future claims experience and developments. The uncertainties about the amount and
timing of claim payments are normally resolved within one vear.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation
and cavse the other party to incur a financial loss. The Group®s exposure to credit risk is indicated
by the carrying amount of its financial assets, which consist principally of accounts and insurance
contract receivables, amounts due from related parties and bank balances.

Management has established a credit policy under which each new counter party is analysed
individually for creditworthiness before the Group’s standard payment and delivery terms and
conditions are offered. The Group's review includes external ratings, when available, and in some
cases bank references. Purchase limits are established for each counter party, which represents
the maximum open amount without requiring approval from the senior management. These limits
are reviewed quarlerly.
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32.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
counter party. The demographics of the counter parties, including the default risk of the industry
and country, in which a counter party operate, has less of an influence on credit risk. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk arises from the default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amount of the instruments as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
QR 000 QR ‘000
Cash and bank balances {including time deposits) 951,717 1,335,724
Insurance and reinsurance related receivables® 445,746 600,781
Met trade receivables (Note 1) 167,833 290.712
Financial investments 591,982 621,547
Due from related parties (Note 28) 462,841 309,533

*This includes the insurance contract receivables and reinsurance share of outstanding claims.

Cash and hank balances and time deposits
Credit risk on bank balances is limited as they are placed with local and foreign banks having
good credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.

Insurance and reinsurance related receivables

The maximum exposure to credit risk for insurance and reinsurance related receivables at the
reporting date was equal to the receivables amount disclosed in the consolidated statement of
financial position. All receivables are related to receivables within GCC countries. Moreover, to
minimise its exposure to significant losses from reinsurance insolvencies, the Group employs the
services of a top rated international broker.

Net trade receivables
The maximum exposure to credit risk for certain other receivables at the reporting date was equal
to the receivables amount disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Due from related parties

The maximum exposure to credit risk for certain amounts due from related parties at the reporting
date was equal to the receivables amount disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial
position. All receivables are relating to due from related parties within the country, except for
certain insignificant due from related parties located in India.
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GULF INTERNATIONAL SERVICES ).5.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2017

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Objective and policies {continued)

(i) This includes held-to-maturity financial assets_ available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit and loss.

Concentration risk

Concentration risk is any single exposure or group of exposures with the potential to produce
losses large enough to threaten the Group’s health or ahility to maintain its core operations. Such
concentrations include:

Significant exposures to an individual counterparty or group of related counterparties;
Credit exposures to counterparties whose financial performance is dependent on the same
activity or commodity; and

s Indirect credit exposures arising from the Group’s credit risk mitigation activities (e.g.
exposure to a single collateral type or to credit protection provided by a single counterparty).

The Group’s insurance risk relates to policies written in the State of Qatar.
Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due. The Group's approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that it
will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's
reputation and is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of interest bearing loans and borrowings.

Typically, the Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational
expenses for a period of 90 days, including the servicing of financial obligations, This excludes
the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted such as natural
disasters.

Residual contractual maturities of financial liahilities

The following table sets out the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities. The
contractual maturities of financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of the remaining
period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. Management monitors the maturity
profile to ensure that adequate liquidity is maintained. The Group’s expected cash flows on these
instruments do not vary significantly from this analysis,
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GULF INTERNATIONAL SERVICES Q.8.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2017

31.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates and foreign currency
exchange rates will affect the Group’s profit, equity or value of its holding of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control the market risk

exposure within aceeptable parameters, while optimising returmns.

Market risk has three main components;

- Foreign exchange risk;
. Interest rate risk; and

- Equity price risk.
Forefgn exchange risk

The Group does not hedge its currency exposure. However, management is of the opinion that
the Group's exposure to currency risk is minimal as there are no significant items of financial
assefs and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies other than US Dollar which is
pegged to the Qatar Rival,

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
Muctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
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GULF INTERNATIONAL SERVICES (.5.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the vear ended December 31, 2017

32.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased

(decreased) equity and the profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that
all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.

Profit or loss Fquity
100 bps 100 bps 100 bps 100 bps
_increase decrease increase decrease

QR “000 QR 000 QR ‘000 QR ‘000

December 31, 2007
Loans and bomrowings (51,455) 51,455 (51,455) 51,455
Cash flow sensitivity {(net) (51,455) 51,455 (51,455) 51.455
Profit or loss - Equi
100 bps 100 bps 100 bps 100 bps
increase decrease Increase decrease
QR 000 QR 000 QR 000 QR 000
December 31, 2016
Loans and borrowings (35.600) 55.698 {55,698) 55,698
Cash flow sensitivity (net) {55,698) 55,698 (55,698) 55,698
Eguity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or
currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial
nstrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Group’s equity price risk exposure relates to financial assets and financial liabilities whose
values will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices, principally investment in securities,

The Group’s price risk policy requires it to manage such risks by setting and monitoring

objectives and constraints on investments, diversification plans, limits on investments in each
sector. The Group has no significant concentration of price risk.
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GULF INTERNATIONAL SERVICES Q.5.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2017

32,
Market risk (continued)

Equity Price risk (continued)

FINANCTAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in key variables with all
other variables held constant. showing the impact on net profit and equity.

Listed shares in Qatar Exchange
Structured investments

Listed shares in Qatar Exchange
Structured investments

Listed shares in the Qatar Exchange
Structured investments

Listed shares in the Qatar Exchange
Structured investments

Operational risk

December 31, 2017

Financial assets  Available-for- sale
at fair value financial assets-
through profit or  impact on other

Change in  loss- impact on comprehensive
variable Net profit income
+10% - 38,737
+10% 20,103
-10% (38,737
-10% (20,103)
December 31, 2016
Financial assets at ~ Available-for- sale
fair value through financial assets-
profit or loss- impact on other
Change in impact on comprehensive
variable Net profit income
+10% - 312,193
+10% 21,415 -
-10% - (32,193)
-10% (21.415)

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems and control failures, fraud and human
errors, which can result in financial and reputation loss, and legal and regulatory consequences.
The Group manages operational risk through appropriate controls, instituting segregation of
duties and internal checks and balances, including internal audit and compliance.

Capital management

The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and
market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors
monitors the capital, which the Group defines as total shareholders™ equity.

The Board also seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.
The Group’s target is to achieve a return on shareholders’ equity greater than the weighted
average interest expense on interest-bearing loans and borrowings.
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GULF INTERNATIONAL SERVICES Q.5.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
For the yvear ended December 31, 2017

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Capital management (continued)
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic and business conditions and shareholders’ expectation. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes during the year ended December 31, 2017,
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is debt divided by capital equity. The
Group includes within debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings while capital includes all
components of equity.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio at vear end was as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
QR 000 QR 000
Debt (i) 5,145,465 5,569,834
Cash and bank balances (931,454) (1,335,724)
Net debt 4,214,011 4,234,110
Equity (if) 3,678,563  3,798.768
Net debt to equity ratio 115% 111%

(1) Debt is defined as short and long term debt as detailed in Note 19.
(i) Eguity includes all capital, retained earnings and reserves of the Group that are managed
as capital.

33. FAIR VALUES AND CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of financial investments that are actively traded in organized financial markets is
determined by reference to quoted market bid prices for assets and offer prices for liabilities at
the close of business at the end of the reporting period.

For financial instruments where there is no active market, the fair value is determined by using
valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s length transactions, reference
to the current market value of another instrument which is substantially the same andfor
discounted cash flow analysis. For discounted cash flow techniques, estimated future cash flows
are based on management’s best estimates and the discount rate used is a market related rate for
a similar instrument.

If the fair values cannot be measured reliably, these financial instruments are measured at cost.
Fair value is an amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between

knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The estimated fair values of the
Group's major financial instruments are provided in the tables below:
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GULF INTERNATIONAL SERVICES Q.5.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the vear ended December 31, 2017

Fair value
through Loans Others Total
profit or and Available amortized carrying Fair
December 31, 2017 loss receivables - for- sale cost value Value
OR “000 QR ‘000 QR 000 QR 000 QR ‘000 QR 000
Assets
Cash and bank
balances - 431,454 - - 931,454 031,454
Insurance contract
receivables g 1BR, 360 - - 188,360 188,360
Trade receivables - 129627 - - 220,627 229,627
Reinsurance share of
outstanding claims - 257,386 - 257,386 257,386
Due from related
parties - 462,841 - - 462,841 461,841
Available-for-sale
financial assets - 387,370 - 3%7370 387370
Held-to-maturity
financial assefs = - - 3,583 3,583 3,583
Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss 201,029 - - - 201,029 201.029
201,029 2,069,668 IATITO 3,583 2,661,650 2,661,650
Liabilities
Loans and
borrowings = = - 5,145,465 5, 145465 5,145,465
Due to refated
parties - - * 8,312 8.312 8312
Trade payables - - - 142,445 142,445 142,445
Outstanding claims - - - 611,185 611,185 611,185
Reinsurance
premium payable - - 125398 125,308 125398
- - 6,032,800 6,032,800 6,032,800
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GULF INTERNATIONAL SERVICES (Q.5.C.

MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2017

33. TFAIR VALUES AND CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

{CONTINUED)
Fair value
through Loans Others Total
profil or and Available amortized CAITYINg Fair
December 31, 2016 loss receivables - for- sale cost value Value
QR 000 QR “000 QR 000 QR 000 QR 000 QR 000
Azgsels
Cash and bank
balances - 1,335,724 - -- 1,335,724 1,335,724
Insurance contract
receivables = 266,999 - - 266,999 266,999
Trade receivables - 335,683 - = 335,683 335,683
Reinsurance share of 333,782 333,782 333,782
putstanding claims - = -
Due from refated
parties - 309,533 - - 309,533 309,533
Available-for-sale
financial assets - - 321,930 - 321,930 321,930
Held-to-maturity
financial assets - - - B5.468 85,468 86,056
Financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss 214,149 - -- -- 214,149 214,149
214,149 2,581,721 321,930 85,4608 3,203,268 3,203,856
Liabilities
Loans and borrowings - 5,369,834 5,369,834 5,569,834
Due to related parties - - -- 2,712 2,712 2712
Trade payables - - - 117,350 117,350 117,350
Outstanding claims -- - - 725,930 725930 T25,930
Reinsurance premium
payable -- -- - 140,590 140,590 140,590
= — = 6.556.416 6,556,416 6,556,416
Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method, The
different levels have been defined as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs)

< -
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FAIR VALUES ANI} CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

As at December 31, 2017
Available-for-sale financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

As at December 31, 2016
Available-for-sale financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Level 1 Level2  Level3 Total
QR 000 QR 000 QR ‘000 QR 000
387,370 - 2 387,372
201,029 - - 201,029
588,399 - 2 588,401
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
QR 000 QR 000 QR 000 QR *000
321,928 - 2 321,930
214,149 - - 214,149
536,077 - 2 536,079

.



